[ Not e:

12: 00: 56 AM

HOUSE FI NANCE COVM TTEE
April 18, 2014
12: 00 a. m

Conti nuation of 4/17/14 9:00 p.m neeting]

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Al an Aust erman, Co-Chair
Bill Stoltze, Co-Chair
Mar k Neurman, Vice-Chair
M a Costello

Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

David Guttenberg

Li ndsey Hol nes

Cat hy Munoz

St eve Thonpson

Tamm e W1 son

Senator Peter Mocciche; Wjtusik, Staff, Senator Lesi
McGuire; Bill Peddler, Alaska Tourism Association; Roberta
Graham  Assistant Comm ssioner, Departnment of Conmerce,
Communi ty and Econom c Devel opnent.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Kat hl een Martin, Self, Cooper Landing; Ed Martin, Self,
Cooper Landing; Ed Sniffen, Departnent O Law, Anchorage;
Al Nagel, Departnent O Labor And Wrkforce Devel opnent,
Anchor age.

SUMVARY

SB 193 CONTRACTORS: BONDS; LI CENSI NG

SB 193 was

HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for

further consideration.

House Fi nance Committee 1



CSSB 194( FI N)
TOURI SM MARKET! NG BOARD

HCS CSSB 194(L&C) was REPORTED out of committee
wth a "do pass" recomendation and with one new
zero fiscal note fromthe Departnent of Comrerce,
Community and Econom c Devel opnent and one
previously published fiscal note: FN2 (LEG.

#sb194
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 194(FIN)

"An Act creating the Alaska Tourism Mrketing Board
and relating to tourism marketing."

12: 00: 56 AM

Bl LL PEDDLER, ALASKA TOURI SM  ASSCOCI ATI ON, replied in
response to a question by Representative WIlson related to
a quorum of nmenbers from each region of the state. He
stated that the representatives from the |egislature or
agency were not counted with the designated regions of the
state. He noted that he had never had a problem achieving a
guorum as the subject was passionate anongst industry
menbers.

Representative Wl son stated that she served as a Fairbanks
assenbly representative and a board nenber for the tourism
associ ation. She appreciated the |egislation.

12: 02: 08 AM

Representative Mnoz described the simlarity to the
mar keti ng board established by the Al aska Travel Industry
Association (ATIA). She wondered about the benefit of
pl aci ng the association in statute.

12: 02: 27 AM

ROBERTA GRAHAM  ASSI STANT COWM SSI ONER,  DEPARTMENT  OF
COWERCE, COVMUNITY AND ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, stated that
the marketing committee of ATIA was affiliated with the
Qualified Trade Association in statute.

House Fi nance Committee 2



Representative Minoz understood that one of the primry
pur poses of t he or gani zati on woul d be to make
recommendations on the future of the marketing funds.

Ms. Graham concurred, she noted that the relationship
mai nt ai ned by the state and industry existed for decades.

12: 03: 38 AM

Representative Gara asked if the board was represented
regional ly.

Ms. Graham replied that the bill did have regiona
representation. She nentioned the five regions of the state
repr esent ed.

Representative Hol nes opined that ATIA had done a fantastic
job representing different aspects of the tourism sector.
She credited Ms. Graham with her work. She supported the
| egi sl ation.

12: 04: 56 AM

Representati ve Thonpson appreciated the |egislation and the
travel industry.

12: 05:21 AM

Co-Chair Austerman noted that the board and the trade
associ ation pronoted Al aska. He nentioned the inprovenent
between other industries and the tourism industry. He
wi shed to continue funding marketing efforts for Al aska.

Co-Chair Stoltze asked what would be done differently as a
result of the |egislation.

12: 06: 50 AM

M. Peddler replied that the industry participated in
sucessful joint-marketing adventures. He stressed the
benefits of collaboration between the state and the
i ndustry.

12: 08: 10 AM

Representative Costell o discussed the two fiscal notes, one
zero note and one indeterm nate.

House Fi nance Committee 3



Vi ce-Chair Neuman MOVED to REPORT HCS CSSB 194(L&C) out of
committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was
so ordered.

HCS CSSB 194(L&C) was REPORTED out of conmittee with a "do
pass" recommendati on and with one new zero fiscal note from
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent and one previously published indetermnate
fiscal note: FN2 (LEG.

#sb193
SENATE BILL NO. 193

"An Act relating to bonds required for contractors.”

12:10: 09 AM

SENATOR PETER M CClI CHE, SPONSOR, testified that the purpose
of the construction surety bonds was to provide consumner
protection. The bonds anmpbunts renmained the sane since 1982,
while material costs and wages had quadrupled. The bond
rates remained the same at $10 thousand for general
contractors and $5 thousand for specialty. The mgjority of
contractors took pride in their work. The bill nodernized
the surety bond protection level, which would provide
additional protection. The legislation increased the rate
for general contractors to $25 thousand, added a new
residential -only endorsenent for $20 thousand, a nechani cal
or specialty contractor bond for $10 thousand and a
handyman category for those perform ng small projects.

Senator Mcciche pointed out that the bill ignored those
people attenpting projects costing $2500 or less. The
definition of a contractor renained the sane. He provided
an exanple about cost increases. He nentioned a list of
supporters. He estimated that the cost of increasing the
bond would fall between $125 and $500 per year for
contractors. The additional cost included a great deal of
protection to the consuner.

12:13: 34 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze OPENED public testinony.

House Fi nance Committee 4



KATHLEEN MARTI N, SELF, COOPER LANDI NG (via tel econference),
(via teleconference) reported to the conmttee that she
found out about the legislation relatively late in the
session. She contacted other contractors on the Kenai
Peni nsul a who were also unaware of the proposed changes to
Al aska's bonding requirenents. She expressed concern about
the lack of information provided to contractors and
wondered if polls were taken prior to introducing the bill
She suggested a nethod of punishnent for those contractors
acting in a less than professional manner. She stated that
small clains court provided necessary recourse for those
consuners that were poorly served. She expressed concern
that the higher costs would be passed on to the consuner.

Co-Chair Stoltze apologized for the late hour of public
t esti nony.

12:18: 38 AM

Representative WIson asked how nuch Ms. Martin paid now
and what the increase would nean to the busi ness.

Ms. Martin replied that the inception of her business in
2008 as a specialty contractor required $500, but with the
upgrade to general contractor the price increased to $1000.
She stated that she did not contact her bond conpany for
t he precise increase, but she predicted a $1250 cost.

Representative WIson asked about her annual business
ear ni ngs.

Ms. Martin replied that her business earned between $250
t housand and $400 t housand annual ly.

Representative WIl son appreciated the information.
Co-Chair Stoltze appreciated the patience of the testifier.

12: 20: 31 AM

ED MARTIN, SELF, COOPER LANDING (via teleconference)
testified with concern about the l|egislation's inpact. He
had difficulty believing that the additional cost to the
consuner was beneficial. He noted that he was a nenber of
the Associated GCeneral Contractors (AGC) while rmany
contractors were not. He hoped that the conmttee would
hold the bill to obtain further testinony from Al askan

House Fi nance Committee 5



contractors. He rem nded that AGC represented approximately
350 contractors in the state. He stated that nany snal
contractors could not afford the small dues for the
nmenbership at $1800 to $2500 per year. He anticipated that
the insurance conpanies would be the only entities to
benefit from the bond increases. He believed that the
handyman provi si on was val i d.

12: 25: 08 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze CLOSED public testinony.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman discussed fees and definitions related to
t he business of contracting. He stated that he did not |ike
the legislation and wondered how so few testifiers opposed
the bill. He asked if only one contractor opposed the bill.

12: 27: 25 AM

Senator Mcciche replied yes. He believed that Vice-Chair
Neuman m sunderstood the definition of a contractor. He
guoted that a contractor was "a person who in the pursuit
of an independent business undertakes or offers to perform
or claims to have the capacity to perform or submts a bid
for a project to construct, alter, repair, nove or denolish
a building, highway, road, railroad or any type of fixed
structure including excavation."

Vice-Chair Neunan stated that the installation would incur
simlar bonding issues as a result of the bill.

Senator Mcciche reported to the conmttee that the bill
woul d not change the definition of contractor.

12:28: 47 AM

Representati ve W | son wonder ed what pronpt ed t he
| egi sl ation. She asked if some consuners had not been able
to recoup their costs followng a lawsuit or was it the
| ack of update since 1982.

Senator Mcciche replied that both reasons pronpted the
introduction of the bill. He stated that the Mrtins in
Cooper Landing were the only testifiers to oppose the
| egislation. He stated that he tried to return their calls
for nost of the day. He pointed out that all other costs
had been updated, but inadequate coverage existed for the

House Fi nance Committee 6



bonding levels. He noted support from AGS of Al aska al ong
with many other letters of support that had been received
by his office. He stated that people could continue to
operate without I|icenses, bonding or insurance. He stated
that the bill's intent was that of basic consuner
protection. He nentioned the annual cost for a $10 thousand
surety bond of $500 per year.

12: 30: 44 AM

Representative WI|son stated that she also received a call
fromthe Martins in Cooper Landing earlier in the day. She
wanted to better understand their concerns. She w shed to
avoid msrepresentations by contractors that would |eave
t he consumer w thout recourse. She al so understood the need
to update the statute. She wondered if the handyman cl ause
was applicable to any consunmer with the limt of $2500.

12: 31: 38 AM

Representative WIson asked why one fee was increased while
t he ot her was decreased.

Senator Mcciche stated that he did not wish to increase
costs for business unless the basic |evel of protection was
not available for consuners. He agreed that the prices that
a handyman would charge were nuch |ess than a contractor.
He believed that the bill addressed the protection of each
| evel of consuner. He opined that the cost of bonding for a
handyman was relatively low at $125 to $200. He noted that

general liability insurance cost $3 thousand to $6 thousand
annual ly. The cost of the bond was much |ess. He believed
that the small increase in cost was advantageous to the

consuner. He deferred to the Departnent of Law

12: 34: 03 AM

ED SNI FFEN, DEPARTMENT OF LAW ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference) provided his position. He noted that he
worked in the consumer protection unit. He stated that the
departnment supported the |legislation. He nentioned 57
conplaints against contractors since 2010. Sone of the
conpl aints led to lawsuits where <collections were
i npossible due to the Ilow bonds. He Dbelieved that
i ncreasing the bonding anmobunts would provide sone |evel of
consuner protection. He spoke to the handynman issue and

House Fi nance Committee 7



noted that the nmmjority of conplaints stenmed from the
i ssue.

Representative W/Ison asked how many contractors had been
sued because of insufficient bonding.

12: 36: 48 AM

M. Sniffen replied that he did not have the requested
nunber of contractors. He noted that 3 consuners in 2013
were unable to collect agai nst contractors wthout
sufficient bonding. He pointed out one additional case
where a contractor was sued w thout sufficient bonding to
pay the creditors.

Representative WIlson wondered if crimnal charges would be
filed against a contractor or handyman operating w thout a
bond.

12: 37: 43 AM

M. Sniffen replied that the contractor nmay be reported to
the crimnal division and to the Departnment of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent. In the past, followwng a crimnal
report, the sane people were discovered performng simlar
tasks under different business nanmes. He nentioned the
benefits of hiding behind the corporate structure of a
Limted Liability Corporation. He opined that the problem
regardi ng unlicensed contractors would continue despite the
passage of SB 193.

12:38:49 AM

Represent ati ve Edgnon asked about section 3, "the applicant
may file with the commi ssioner a cash deposit or other
negoti able security.” He requested a definition of
negoti abl e security.

M. Sniffen replied that he was unsure about the paraneters
of the negotiable security. He offered to present the
information to the conmttee.

Senator Mcciche replied that a person could post a cash
bond rather than a surety bond for the sane anount.

House Fi nance Committee 8



Representative Edgnon noted that the bonding capability
m ght not repr esent cash out-of-pocket to pay the
addi tional fee.

Senator Mcciche replied yes. He stated that various prices
were listed for different work.

12: 40: 53 AM

AL NAGEL, DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference) was available to answer
guesti ons.

Represent ati ve Thonpson addressed M. Nagel.

M. Nagel responded to Representative WIson's question
about wunlicensed individuals and crimnal sanctions. He
stated that the crine nmentioned was a C ass B nm sdeneanor.
In 2006, the legislature passed a statute allowing the
departnment a civil or admnistrative fine authority. He
addressed Representative WIlson's additional guestion
related to the nunber of clains exceeding $10 thousand. He
stated that nost clains were private litigation, so he was
unable to provide an answer. He stated that research
contractor |licensing provided a nunmber of contractors that
held a $10 thousand bond with a $100 thousand cl ai m agai nst
them He noted that the person at fault mght be a
supplier, contractor or subcontractor. He stated that the
probl em was si zabl e for the consuner.

12:43: 23 AM

Co-Chair Stoltze informed the commttee that he would
further address the handyman provision of the bill in the
nor ni ng.

Representative Costello stated that the bill weighed the

val ue of the public protection. She wondered about a way to
quantify public protection versus a cost incurred by a
busi ness per son resul ting from an i ncreased bond
requi renent. She wondered if the value of public protection
coul d be quantified.

Senator Mcciche replied that the level of danmage to the
consuner in addition to the noney owed to the supplier or
equi pnent conpany contributed to the amobunt owed. He opined
that a reputable contractor would go out of their way to

House Fi nance Committee 9



protect their bond. The bill

protection for consuners.

SB 193 was HEARD and
consi derati on.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

12:48:17 AM

HELD

in

conmmittee

The neeting was adjourned at 12:48 a. m

House Fi nance Committee

10

for

nerely noderni zed the | evel of

further



